
Notice of Meeting

Personnel Committee
Thursday, 12th September, 2019 at 
3.30 pm
in Roger Croft Room  Council Offices  
Market Street  Newbury
Note: The Council broadcasts some of its meetings on the internet, known as webcasting. If this 
meeting is webcasted, please note that any speakers addressing this meeting could be filmed. If 
you are speaking at a meeting and do not wish to be filmed, please notify the Chairman before 
the meeting takes place. Please note however that you will be audio-recorded.

Date of despatch of Agenda:  Wednesday, 4 September 2019

For further information about this Agenda, or to inspect any background documents 
referred to in Part I reports, please contact Moira Fraser on (01635) 519045
e-mail: moira.fraser@westberks.gov.uk 

Further information and Minutes are also available on the Council’s website at 
www.westberks.gov.uk 

Scan here to access the public 
documents for this meeting

Public Document Pack

http://www.westberks.gov.uk/


Agenda - Personnel Committee to be held on Thursday, 12 September 2019 (continued)

To: Councillors Dennis Benneyworth, Jeff Brooks, Nassar Kessell, 
Garth Simpson and Howard Woollaston

Substitutes: Councillors Adrian Abbs, Lee Dillon, Richard Somner and Joanne Stewart

Agenda
Part I Page No.

1.   Apologies for Absence
To receive apologies for inability to attend the meeting (if any).

2.   Minutes 5 - 8
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the 
Committee held on 28 June 2019.

3.   Declarations of Interest
To remind Members of the need to record the existence and nature of 
any personal, disclosable pecuniary or other registrable interests in items 
on the agenda, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

4.   Council Workforce Strategy 2019-2023 (PC3755) 9 - 36
Purpose: The purpose of the report is to present the final draft of the 
Workforce Strategy to sit alongside the Council Strategy. 

5.   Date of Next Meeting
Provisional Meeting scheduled for the 15 October 2019.

Sarah Clarke
Head of Legal and Strategic Support

If you require this information in a different format or translation, please contact 
Moira Fraser on telephone (01635) 519045.

http://info.westberks.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=38477&p=0


DRAFT
Note: These Minutes will remain DRAFT until approved at the next meeting of the Committee

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON
FRIDAY, 28 JUNE 2019

Councillors Present: Dennis Benneyworth, Jeff Brooks (Vice-Chairman), Nassar Kessell, 
Garth Simpson (Chairman) and Howard Woollaston

Also Present: Tracy Sherriff (Apprenticeship Co-ordinator), Moira Fraser (Democratic and 
Electoral Services Manager) and Abi Witting (HR Manager)

PART I

3. Minutes
The Minutes of the meetings held on 15 April 2019 and 21 May 2019 were approved as 
true and correct records and signed by the Chairman.

4. Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest received.

5. Update on Apprenticeships and  Work Experience Policy (P3705)
The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 4) which provided an update on the 
use of the Apprenticeship Levy since April 2017, set out the direction of travel for 
apprenticeships in the emerging Workforce Strategy and set out how the work 
experience programme would support recruitment of apprentices.
Abi Witting in introducing the report stated that she was pleased to report that the Council 
was developing a culture which looked favourably on apprenticeships. Tracy Sheriff had 
been permanently appointed as the Apprenticeship Co-Ordinator. She was working with 
the Council’s leadership teams as well as schools to support this important area of work. 
Part of the role was to provide opportunities to upskill new and existing employees while 
making use of the apprenticeship levy fund. This could have a positive impact on staff 
retention. There was currently £840k in the pot of which £610k had already been 
committed.
She noted that the report included a recommendation that all vacancies up to Grade F 
should be considered as a potential apprenticeship opportunity and services were being 
asked to demonstrate a business case for not making a role an apprenticeship.
Councillor Jeff Brooks queried whether the recruitment paperwork included a requirement 
for the recruiting officer to state whether or not they had considered an apprenticeship. 
Officers confirmed that this was not currently the case. The Committee requested that 
this step be added to the paperwork thereby adding a constant reminder to those 
recruiting to positively consider an apprenticeship where roles were vacant. (HR to 
Action). Members also asked that recommendation 2 of the report be amended to 
ensure that services had to provide a business case as to why an apprenticeship had not 
been considered. 
Councillor Brooks noted that there was circa £240k in the levy which had not been spent 
or was not already committed.  He asked that some detailed analysis around the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2.



PERSONNEL COMMITTEE - 28 JUNE 2019 - MINUTES

expenditure be undertaken. He noted that in addition to the social benefits, this use of 
funding could also have an impact on National Insurance contributions and he would like 
this to be included in the analysis. Ms Witting said she would look into getting this 
information together and would bring it to the next Apprenticeship Steering Group 
meeting which was scheduled to take place on the 01 August 2019. (AW to Action).
Councillor Howard Woollaston commented that the scheme was successful and was 
producing good results especially in Social Services. He felt that it would be beneficial for 
the Council to publicise its successes and he would work with the Communications Team 
to achieve this.
Abi Witting stated that one of the areas they would be focussing on was creating 
opportunities for young disadvantaged members of the community and in particular the 
Council’s Looked After Children. Collaborative work was being undertaken with the 
Education Business Partnership (EBP), the School Improvement and Governance team,  
and local training providers such as West Berkshire Training Consortium and Newbury 
College. Greater links were also being established with local schools, colleges, charities 
and social care. 

Opportunities were being sought to align work experience with apprenticeships to raise 
awareness amongst young people of the Council as an employer.
The majority of the 118 apprenticeships were in Adult Social Care. As such this area 
provided an opportunity for the Council to become a registered training provider in its 
own right and this was an area that Officers were currently exploring. This would enable 
the Council to draw down funds from the levy as the training provider and would enable 
the delivery of the apprenticeship that suited the Council’s business needs. It would also 
enable the Council to deliver apprenticeships to other organisations. This training was not 
currently being provided by the Council’s partners and presented a gap in the market. 
The Committee was very supportive of making more use of apprenticeships and 
commented that it was essential that there was buy in to this from the top of the 
organisation. They thanked Officers for the work they were doing.

RESOLVED that the direction of travel be approved as follows:

1. A pro-apprenticeship culture be developed across the Council and the use 
of apprenticeships be embedded within the workforce strategy at corporate 
and service level. This should also include sufficient resource is provided 
within HR to facilitate this. This would include:

 Attending service SMTs to promote apprenticeships and to 
make sure managers are aware of the available options;

 Attend school admin briefings and the Senior Manager 
Seminars to share successes, best practice and information in 
relation to apprenticeships.

 Celebrate and promote apprenticeships through Reporter 
articles and case studies on our website.

2. All vacancies up to Grade F to be considered as a potential apprenticeship 
opportunity and services be required to demonstrate a business case for not 
making a role an apprenticeship.

Page 4



PERSONNEL COMMITTEE - 28 JUNE 2019 - MINUTES

3. A range of advertising channels to be used in accordance with the target 
market such as Facebook and Twitter.

4. Collaborative work be undertaken with local training providers such as West 
Berkshire Training Consortium and Newbury College, plus greater links be 
established with local schools, colleges, charities and social care. 
Involvement at recruitment fairs and attendance at other apprenticeship 
events.

5. A structured rolling work experience/work taster programme to encourage 
young people into the Council, identifying potential employees/apprentices 
and raising awareness amongst young people of the Council as an 
employer.

(The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and closed at 10.56 am)

CHAIRMAN …………………………………………….

Date of Signature …………………………………………….

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



West Berkshire Council Personnel Committee 12 September 2019

Workforce Strategy - Summary Report
Committee considering 
report: Personnel Committee

Date of Committee: 12 September 2019
Portfolio Member: Councillor Howard Woollaston
Date Portfolio Member 
agreed report: 01 August 2019

Report Author: Robert O'Reilly
Forward Plan Ref: PC3755

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1    The purpose of the report is to present the Workforce Strategy to sit alongside the 
Council Strategy. 

2. Recommendation

2.1 That Personnel Committee approves the Workforce Strategy. The Workforce 
Strategy is attached as Appendix D. 

2.2 The Workforce Strategy may be changed before March 2020 to include a section on 
reintroducing scoring for performance at appraisals. Operation Board will consider a 
report from the Head of HR on 5th December on the pros and cons of reintroducing 
scoring for appraisals which will include views from managers, staff and unions as 
well as a review of what other local authorities do. This report will also consider the 
option of training approved at appraisal to be contingent on the employee having an 
up to date record on all mandatory training. If OB decide to recommend the 
reintroduction of scoring in appraisals this will go to Personnel Committee for final 
approval.

3. Implications

3.1 Financial: There are some proposals in the Workforce Strategy Action 
Plan that are subject to a budget bid which has been 
submitted for implementation in 2020/21. 

3.2 Policy: Some HR policies will need to be revised as parts of the 
Workforce Strategy are implemented. 

3.3 Personnel: No staffing implications.  

3.4 Legal: The Workforce Strategy has no legal or contractual status.  

3.5 Risk Management: none

3.6 Property: none

3.7 Other: none

Page 7

Agenda Item 4.



Workforce Strategy - Summary Report

West Berkshire Council Personnel Committee 12 September 2019

4. Other options considered

4.1 The option of not having a Workforce Strategy was considered as the Council has 
not had such a document for several years since the previous ‘People Strategy’ 
document lapsed. However, the advantages of bringing together all the planning on 
workforce issues for the next four years, to go alongside the new Council Strategy, 
was considered important enough to write a new Workforce Strategy. 

Page 8



Workforce Strategy - Summary Report

West Berkshire Council Personnel Committee 12 September 2019

Executive Summary
5. Introduction / Background

5.1 The Workforce Strategy contains information on what the Council plans to do in five 
key areas over the four year period July 2019 to July 2023. The five areas are: 

(1) Apprenticeships and skills development; 

(2) Leadership;

(3) Recruitment & retention; 

(4) Organisational development; 

(5) Employee wellbeing.

6. Proposal

6.1 That Personnel Committee approve the Workforce Strategy.    

6.2 For details on the new proposals in the Workforce Strategy please see Appendix C 
– Supporting Information. 

7. Conclusion

7.1 The Workforce Strategy will be delivered by leadership from elected members and 
senior managers; by managers in services; by employees ‘going the extra mile’ and 
living the Council values of Fairness, Integrity and Customer Service; and by the 
efforts of the HR Service. Governance will be put in place to monitor progress on 
the Workforce Strategy. Details on governance arrangements are under discussion 
and will include a report on progress to a new Workforce Board. 

8. Appendices

8.1 Appendix A – Data Protection Impact Assessment

8.2 Appendix B – Equalities Impact Assessment

8.3 Appendix C – Supporting Information 

8.4 Appendix D – Draft Workforce Strategy.

Page 9



Workforce Strategy - Summary Report

West Berkshire Council Personnel Committee 12 September 2019

Appendix A

Data Protection Impact Assessment – Stage One

The General Data Protection Regulations require a Data Protection Impact Assessment 
(DPIA) for certain projects that have a significant impact on the rights of data subjects.

Should you require additional guidance in completing this assessment, please refer to the 
Information Management Officer via dp@westberks.gov.uk

Directorate: Resources

Service: HR

Team: HR

Lead Officer: Robert O’Reilly

Title of Project/System: Workforce Strategy

Date of Assessment: 21/06/19

Page 10

mailto:dp@westberks.gov.uk


Workforce Strategy - Summary Report

West Berkshire Council Personnel Committee 12 September 2019

Do you need to do a Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA)?

Yes No

Will you be processing SENSITIVE or “special category” personal 
data?

Note – sensitive personal data is described as “data revealing racial or ethnic origin, political opinions, 
religious or philosophical beliefs, or trade union membership, and the processing of genetic data, biometric 
data for the purpose of uniquely identifying a natural person, data concerning health or data concerning a 
natural person’s sex life or sexual orientation”

x

Will you be processing data on a large scale?

Note – Large scale might apply to the number of individuals affected OR the volume of data you are 
processing OR both

x

Will your project or system have a “social media” dimension?

Note – will it have an interactive element which allows users to communicate directly with one another?

x

Will any decisions be automated?

Note – does your system or process involve circumstances where an individual’s input is “scored” or 
assessed without intervention/review/checking by a human being?  Will there be any “profiling” of data 
subjects?

x

Will your project/system involve CCTV or monitoring of an area 
accessible to the public?

x

Will you be using the data you collect to match or cross-reference 
against another existing set of data?

x

Will you be using any novel, or technologically advanced systems 
or processes? 

Note – this could include biometrics, “internet of things” connectivity or anything that is currently not widely 
utilised

x

If you answer “Yes” to any of the above, you will probably need to complete Data 
Protection Impact Assessment - Stage Two.  If you are unsure, please consult with 
the Information Management Officer before proceeding.

Page 11

http://intranet/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=45508
http://intranet/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=45508


Workforce Strategy - Summary Report

West Berkshire Council Personnel Committee 12 September 2019

Appendix B

Equality Impact Assessment - Stage One

We need to ensure that our strategies, polices, functions and services, current and 
proposed have given due regard to equality and diversity as set out in the Public 
Sector Equality Duty (Section 149 of the Equality Act), which states:

“(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to 
the need to:
(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 

conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; This includes 
the need to:
(i) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share 

a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that 
characteristic;

(ii) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic that are different from the needs of persons 
who do not share it;

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it, with due regard, in 
particular, to the need to be aware that compliance with the duties in this 
section may involve treating some persons more favourably than others.

(2) The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different 
from the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps 
to take account of disabled persons' disabilities.

(3) Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons 
more favourably than others.”

The following list of questions may help to establish whether the decision is 
relevant to equality:

 Does the decision affect service users, employees or the wider community? 
 (The relevance of a decision to equality depends not just on the number of those 

affected but on the significance of the impact on them) 
 Is it likely to affect people with particular protected characteristics differently?
 Is it a major policy, or a major change to an existing policy, significantly 

affecting how functions are delivered?
 Will the decision have a significant impact on how other organisations operate 

in terms of equality?
 Does the decision relate to functions that engagement has identified as being 

important to people with particular protected characteristics?
 Does the decision relate to an area with known inequalities?
 Does the decision relate to any equality objectives that have been set by the 

council?

Page 12



Workforce Strategy - Summary Report

West Berkshire Council Personnel Committee 12 September 2019

Please complete the following questions to determine whether a full Stage Two, 
Equality Impact Assessment is required.

What is the proposed decision that 
you are asking the Executive to 
make:

Workforce Strategy

Summary of relevant legislation: n/a

Does the proposed decision conflict 
with any of the Council’s key strategy 
priorities?

no

Name of assessor: Robert O’Reilly

Date of assessment: 17/04/19

Is this a: Is this:

Policy No New or proposed New

Strategy Yes Already exists and is being 
reviewed No

Function No Is changing No

Service No

1 What are the main aims, objectives and intended outcomes of the proposed 
decision and who is likely to benefit from it?

Aims: As set out in the Workforce Strategy

Objectives: As set out in the Workforce Strategy

Outcomes: As set out in the Workforce Strategy

Benefits: As set out in the Workforce Strategy

2 Note which groups may be affected by the proposed decision.  Consider how 
they may be affected, whether it is positively or negatively and what sources 
of information have been used to determine this.
(Please demonstrate consideration of all strands – Age, Disability, Gender 
Reassignment, Marriage and Civil Partnership, Pregnancy and Maternity, Race, 
Religion or Belief, Sex and Sexual Orientation.)

Group Affected What might be the effect? Information to support this

Age none

Disability Positive – see WS

Gender 
Reassignment none

Marriage and Civil none

Page 13



Workforce Strategy - Summary Report

West Berkshire Council Personnel Committee 12 September 2019

Partnership

Pregnancy and 
Maternity none

Race none

Religion or Belief none

Sex none

Sexual Orientation none

Further Comments relating to the item:

3 Result 

Are there any aspects of the proposed decision, including how it is 
delivered or accessed, that could contribute to inequality? No

Please provide an explanation for your answer:

Will the proposed decision have an adverse impact upon the lives of 
people, including employees and service users? No

Please provide an explanation for your answer:

If your answers to question 2 have identified potential adverse impacts and you 
have answered ‘yes’ to either of the sections at question 3, or you are unsure about 
the impact, then you should carry out a Stage Two Equality Impact Assessment.

If a Stage Two Equality Impact Assessment is required, before proceeding you 
should discuss the scope of the Assessment with service managers in your area.  
You will also need to refer to the Equality Impact Assessment guidance and Stage 
Two template.

4 Identify next steps as appropriate:

Stage Two required no

Owner of Stage Two assessment: n/a

Timescale for Stage Two assessment: n/a

Name: Robert O’Reilly Date: 21/06/19

Please now forward this completed form to Rachel Craggs, Principal Policy Officer 
(Equality and Diversity) (rachel.craggs@westberks.gov.uk), for publication on the 
WBC website.

Page 14

http://intranet/index.aspx?articleid=32255
http://intranet/index.aspx?articleid=32255
mailto:rachel.craggs@westberks.gov.uk


West Berkshire Council Personnel Committee 12 September 2019

Appendix C

Workforce Strategy 2019-2023 – Supporting 
Information

1. Introduction/Background

1.1 The Council has decided to produce a Workforce Strategy to set alongside the 
Council Strategy. The Workforce Strategy 2019-2023 is attached as Appendix D.

1.2 The Workforce Strategy may be changed before March 2020 to include a section on 
reintroducing scoring for performance at appraisals. Operation Board will consider a 
report from the Head of HR on 5th December on the pros and cons of reintroducing 
scoring for appraisals which will include views from managers, staff and unions as 
well as a review of what other local authorities do. This report will also consider the 
option of training approved at appraisal to be contingent on the employee having an 
up to date record on all mandatory training. If OB decide to recommend the 
reintroduction of scoring in appraisals this will go to Personnel Committee for final 
approval.

2. Supporting Information

2.1  The Workforce Strategy contains information on what the Council plans to do in five 
key areas over the four year period July 2019 to July 2023. The five areas are: 

(1) Apprenticeships and skills development; 

(2) Leadership;

(3) Recruitment & retention; 

(4) Organisational development; 

(5) Employee wellbeing

2.2 There is an action plan in the Workforce Strategy which is explained below. Some 
actions are subject to increased capacity in HR. 

3. Proposals

3.1 HR to support implementation of new top tier management structure including at 
Tier 4. Support to begin in summer 2019. Progress will be reviewed annually.

3.2 Introduce HR workshops for new managers on the leadership competency 
framework in the corporate appraisal form; and to discuss how to use the Council’s 
values of Customer Focus, Integrity and Fairness in their decision making. To start 
in April 2020. The challenge of ensuring that managers act consistently in how they 
manage their employees is on-going as new managers are appointed.   

Page 15



Workforce Strategy 2019-2023 – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Personnel Committee 12 September 2019

3.3 Commercialisation skills training funded from the Corporate Programme for 
managers with an interest in generating more income for the Council, to start in 
summer 2019. A training provider has been identified.

3.4 ASC and C&FS to continue with support from the HR Services team,  to build the 
‘non-pay benefits’ message of working for the Council as part of their recruitment 
campaigns. More work on this topic is planned for autumn 2019.

3.5 HR to hold an “Improving Recruitment through social media” day for recruiting 
managers, HR staff and digital experts in autumn 2019. This may lead to proposed 
changes to some HR policies. 

3.6 All vacancies up to Grade F to be considered for apprenticeships from September 
2019. The ‘default’ will be to assume vacancy can be linked to an apprenticeship 
and this will be discussed with the recruiting manager by HR.

3.7 HR to introduce a new Volunteer and Work Experience policy in July 2019. This will 
act as a ‘stepping stone’ to help disadvantaged applicants to access apprenticeship 
vacancies.

3.8 HR to organise a cohort of five to seven ‘Tier 4’ managers to undertake the Masters 
course in Strategic Leadership and Management funded by the apprenticeship levy. 
The cohort will be identified by March 2020 and the course will start in September 
2020. The cohort will be mentored and coached by Corporate Board. The HR 
Manager for HR Services will attend the course from September 2019 to help with 
the launch in 2020. 

3.9 HR to present a report to Corporate Board in autumn 2019, considering the pros 
and cons of introducing an Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) in April 2020 to 
assist in the area of Employee Wellbeing. An EAP would require a successful 
budget bid (submitted August 2020).

3.10 HR to arrange and hold Let’s Chat workshops for staff employees in autumn 2020 
and spring 2022. Subject to be determined by Strategy Board – initial proposal from 
the Including Everyone Board is to focus on Equalities in 2020.

3.11 Hold an Employee Attitude Survey (EAS) in June 2021 and analyse and act on the 
results. WBC will need to source a new provider or do the EAS in-house (because 
the current provider has ceased to do this type of work).

3.12 Finance and HR to produce a report in autumn 2019 on each service’s training 
budget and the amount of training expenditure per employee and report to CB. This 
analysis will allow CB to determine whether access to training and development is 
fair across the Council (an issue raised by staff at the Let’s Chat workshops in 
spring 2019).

3.13 HR to run an internal ‘brokerage’ service from April 2020 to match employees 
seeking career development with services offering shadowing and secondments. 
HR to find mentors from different parts of the Council for employees who are 
seconded. Issue raised by staff at the Let’s Chat workshops in spring 2019.

3.14 HR will ensure from summer 2019 that all employees have access to the content of 
on-line learning, by providing bespoke face to face training where required to meet 
the needs of employees with disabilities. The e-learning will not be changed 

Page 16



Workforce Strategy 2019-2023 – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Personnel Committee 12 September 2019

(because that is a disproportionate response). The important thing is that access to 
the learning is available to all employees.

3.15 HR to procure a training provider to provide high quality training on Coaching Skills 
in autumn 2020, including follow up support. This is subject to a successful pressure 
bid (submitted August 2020).

3.16 HR to work with digital service colleagues to provide OD activities to support the 
successful introduction of the ‘Three Tier Working’ model where this is a 
recommendation coming out of a New Ways of Working (NWOW) review of a 
service. 

3.17 Re-introduce workshops for managers on using the Sickness Absence Policy from 
autumn 2019. 

3.18 Further actions may be added during the lifetime of the Workforce Strategy.  

4. Conclusion

4.1 The final draft of the Workforce Strategy 2019-2023 is presented for approval to 
Personnel Committee on 12th September 2019.  

5. Consultation and Engagement

5.1 Heads of Service have been consulted. HR staff have been consulted. 

5.2 The trade unions have been consulted – a summary of the comments received from 
Unison are as follows:

(1) The Council should have a policy to in-source staff.

(2) Staff do go the ‘extra mile’ but this goodwill is finite. 

(3) Unison support management consistency training for new managers

(4) Concern that building employee resilience is hiding a lack of resources.

(5) Unison support e-learning flexibility for disabled staff.

(6) Unison support the review of fairness of service training budgets and 
suggest a TU role in allocating training budgets.

(7) Concern re extra work for Tier 4 managers in new senior management 
structure. 

(8) Unison seek a benchmarking exercise on pay of all staff rather than 
relying on low turnover as an indicator of pay being at an acceptable 
level. 

(9) Unison oppose the possible use of market supplements. Prefer 
increase in base pay.

(10) Concerned that the constructive role of the trade unions is underplayed 
in Workforce Strategy (e.g. union role in job evaluation). 

Page 17



Workforce Strategy 2019-2023 – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Personnel Committee 12 September 2019

(11) Unison oppose ‘Let’s Chat’ sessions because the agenda is set by 
management and not staff. 

(12) Unison oppose the “Three Tier Working” concept because it failed in 
Wokingham BC and there is no evidence to support it. 

(13) Agree that HR will need more resources to do everything in the 
Workforce Strategy. 

(14) Seek more analysis on the main reason for sickness absence of 
“stress/depression/anxiety”. 

(15) Support training workshops for managers on use of Sickness Absence 
Policy and offer TU support at workshops. 

(16) Support bid for an Employee Assistance Programme (EAP)

(17) Note that the gender pay gap is not mentioned. 

Background Papers:
None

Subject to Call-In:
Yes:  No:  

Wards affected:
All
Strategic Aims and Priorities Supported:
The proposals will help achieve the following Council Strategy aim(s):

MEC – Become an even more effective Council
The proposals contained in this report will help to achieve the following Council Strategy 
priority:

MEC1 – Become an even more effective Council
The proposals contained in this report will help to achieve the above Council Strategy aims 
and priorities by *(add text)

Officer details:
Name: Robert O’ Reilly
Job Title: Head of HR

Page 18



 Workforce Strategy 2019-2023

Document Control
Document Ref: FINAL Date Created: January 2019

Version: 4 Date Modified: May 2019 June 2019

Revision due

Author: Robert O’Reilly Sign & Date: 21/06/19

Owning Service HR

Change History

Version Date Description Change ID

0.1 25 March 2019 Change format and increase focus on apprenticeships and EAS results ROR

0.2 21 May 2019 To add items after CB discussion on 07/05/19 ROR

0.3 21 June 2019 Changes to wording on three tier working following CB on 19/06/19 ROR

0.4 6 August 2019 Added commitment to report to OB on pros and cons of reintroducing 
scoring in appraisals.which might then amend the Workforce Strategy.  

ROR

Page 19



Page 2 of 16
Version *.* * Strategy Dated: *

Page 20



Page 3 of 16
Version *.* * Strategy Dated: *

1. Introduction

1.1 West Berkshire Council (WBC) has approved this Workforce Strategy for the four 
year period September 2019 to August 2023 to sit alongside the Council Strategy. A 
Workforce Strategy is a way to tie together various policies and activities that affect the 
workforce. This avoids the danger of sending contradictory messages to employees and 
allows the Council to present a coherent ‘employer proposition’ to prospective and existing 
employees.  

1.2 The Council has kept a clear focus on its workforce for over ten years:  gathering 
and analysing data; keeping ahead of legislative changes affecting employees; providing 
training and development; tackling recruitment and retention issues; dealing with 
organisational change; and listening to the views of employees. 

1.3 The Workforce Strategy does not seek to improve an unsatisfactory position, but 
rather to maintain the existing stability and productivity of our workforce. There are some 
areas where the challenges we can see over the next four years (as set out in the Council 
Strategy) mean that changes are needed. These challenges and changes are set out 
below. 

2. Context

2.1 The Workforce Strategy builds on the existing strengths of the workforce. The 
workforce is supported by a comprehensive range of HR policies and procedures which 
are subject to consultation with managers and trade unions. All HR policies and 
procedures are available to employees on the intranet. These policies and procedures are 
developed and updated regularly by the HR Service and command widespread support for 
their fairness and integrity.  

2.2 The picture of the workforce is one of stability and productivity. Employees have a 
‘can-do’ attitude; are willing to ‘go the extra mile’ for the sake of clients and customers; and 
value the public sector ethos (which is exemplified in the values which staff have helped to 
craft: Customer Focus, Integrity and Fairness). This is illustrated by the results of the 
Employee Attitude Survey in June 2018 which had positive scores for employee 
engagement (higher than the average for local government).  

2.3 The Council does not have a strategic aim to increase or decrease the number of 
employees. The number will fluctuate according to circumstances – it increased when the 
Council took over Birchwood Care Home and it decreased when staff in the Countryside 
Service were transferred to the Berkshire, Buckinghamshire and Oxford Wildlife Trust 
(BBOWT).  

2.4 The Workforce Strategy will be delivered by leadership from elected members and 
senior managers; by managers in services; by employees ‘going the extra mile’ and living 
the Council values of Fairness, Integrity and Customer Service; and by the efforts of the 
HR Service. Governance in the form of a Workforce Board will be put in place to monitor 
progress on the Workforce Strategy.

2.5 WBC has many people working and volunteering who are not covered by this 
Workforce Strategy: our teachers and support staff in schools; our foster carers; our library 
and other volunteers; our contractors; and our agency workers. These people provide a 

Page 21



Page 4 of 16
Version *.* * Strategy Dated: *

very valuable part of the overall productive effort of the Council. However, the Workforce 
Strategy focuses on the 1,486 (at 31 March 2019) employees who are directly employed 
by the Council. 

3. Challenges

3.1  The Council faces financial challenges common to all unitary and upper tier local 
authorities in that an ageing population is increasing the percentage of total Council 
expenditure spent on Adult Social Care (ASC) year on year. This means that the key 
challenge for the Council is to meet its statutory requirements, and its objectives set out in 
the Council Strategy, within its financial constraints. This challenge is addressed in the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and it has an effect on the Workforce 
Strategy. Some of the objectives set out in Workforce Strategy will need to be considered 
by elected members against other bids for funding (known as ‘pressures’). The 
consideration of pressures is an annual exercise which takes place in the autumn, working 
on the budget for the following financial year. 

3.2 The ASC management team have identified challenges which will affect their ability 
to recruit and retain staff. These include the near full employment in the district; the 
competition for staff from other care providers; the rural nature of the district meaning 
longer distances for employees to travel to clients; and the high cost of housing. 

3.3 These challenges also affect recruitment and retention for some other groups of 
employees paid on the lower grades (for example Civil Enforcement Officers). Longer term 
forecasts suggest that the number of retired people in West Berkshire will outnumber the 
working age population and finding people willing to work for the Council will become the 
number one priority. However, this supposes that people past state retirement age won’t 
want to continue to work and that people from outside the district won’t want to commute 
to work for the Council. Recruitment and retention needs to be closely monitored and 
creative ideas used to meet staffing shortages as and when they arise. This is discussed 
in more detail in the ‘Recruitment and Retention’ section at 4.3 below. 

3.4 The Council has a challenge with succession planning as the majority of its senior 
managers are approaching, or have passed, the age of 55 when they can retire and 
access their pensions without needing the approval of the Council. Therefore there is a 
risk of losing key staff with long experience and knowledge over a relatively short period of 
time. 

3.5 The Council is giving £210,000 per year (excluding schools) in contributions to the 
government’s Apprenticeship Levy. This money is kept in a ‘digital fund’ and each month’s 
contribution is lost to the Council after two years if it is not spent on providing 
apprenticeships. This provides a challenge to the Council to ensure that the 
Apprenticeship Levy funding is spent on apprenticeships and not lost to the Treasury.  

3.6 Employee feedback for the Employee Attitude Survey and the ‘Let’s Chat’ employee 
workshops provides a challenge to the Council in a number of areas: 

3.6.1 Need to invest in and make time for staff development – make staff feel 
valued and ready for opportunities when they arise and the Council will benefit from 
skilled employees. Ensure that employees feel that they have a fair opportunity to 
access relevant training and development. 

Page 22



Page 5 of 16
Version *.* * Strategy Dated: *

3.6.2 Use apprenticeships where possible.  Also take a creative approach to staff 
development – e.g. shadowing, coaching, mentoring, secondment, ‘lunch and learn’ 
sessions and peer to peer learning. 

3.6.3 Management training, especially for newly promoted managers, would 
improve consistency. Improve the consistency of managers in how they approach 
‘people management’ issues at work. 

3.6.4 Job uncertainty and staff having to pick up more work has an impact – need 
to focus on developing staff resilience.

3.6.5 Provide employees with opportunities for career development using 
shadowing and secondments (because the traditional ‘promotion ladder’ has been 
adversely affected for employees as posts have been merged or deleted to meet 
savings targets).  

4.  Rising to the Challenges

4.1 Apprenticeships and Skills Development

4.1.1 The main area of activity in skills development over the lifetime of the 
Workforce Strategy is the Council’s active engagement with the Apprenticeship Levy 
(£210,000 p.a. excluding schools). Budget Board funded a part time post of 
Apprenticeship Co-ordinator to increase the number of apprentices. This has been 
successful and the Council has reached its public sector target (2.3%) for 
apprenticeship starts of 114 in 2018/19 (includes schools). This figure is above most 
other Councils to date (from LGA data).  The challenge is to keep this momentum up 
over the next four years. 

4.1.2 The Workforce Strategy states that when a role becomes vacant, if it is a 
Grade F or under, the default is that it is advertised as an apprenticeship to encourage 
more new apprentices.

4.1.3 The work undertaken on apprenticeships is reported quarterly to an 
Apprenticeship Steering Group made up of elected members and managers from each 
directorate.

4.1.4 Every service is looking at the emerging Apprenticeship Standards to see 
when apprenticeships will come on stream for their professional areas. In Adult Social 
Care (ASC) and Children & Family Services (C&FS) there are Workforce Development 
Plans already in place which have been created to “grow our own” social workers. This 
is both from recruitment (which is discussed below) and from identifying existing non-
qualified employees who are willing to undertake the required period of study.  
Leadership skills will also be addressed by apprenticeships (which is discussed below).  

4.1.5 There are some areas of skill development which cannot be addressed by 
apprenticeships because the period of learning is under 12 months (apprenticeships 
must last for 12 months or more). There is a need to develop skills in both 
Commercialisation and Digital Skills. The Commercialisation Group has funding to 
purchase Commercialisation Skills training for relevant staff.  Digital skills training is less 
developed and this needs further work building on the successful ‘Digital by Design’ day 
at Shaw House in March 2019.  

Page 23



Page 6 of 16
Version *.* * Strategy Dated: *

4.1.6 Since 2010 the strategic direction of learning and development has been to 
move away from classroom courses if possible and to increase the quantity and quality 
of e-learning resources. This is to reduce costs and to make the training more 
accessible to part time and remote staff. However, this has led to concerns about the 
accessibility of e-learning courses for some employees with disabilities. HR will ensure 
that all employees have access to the learning, by providing bespoke face to face 
training where required to meet the needs of employees with disabilities (rather than 
modifying the e-learning). 

4.1.7 The Let’s Chat staff workshops in spring 2019 showed a desire to access 
quality learning and development and some concern that budget reductions has led to 
an uneven amount of training resources at service level. HR and Finance will work 
together to examine the training budgets at service level and to produce an amount per 
employee for each service. This analysis will allow the organisation to see if there is an 
even playing field for employees seeking learning and development opportunities; and, 
if anomalies have crept in, to seek through a pressure bid to correct the situation. 

4.1.8 Not all skills or knowledge development is undertaken using a formal training 
method. Employees have asked for more opportunities for work experiences in other 
parts of the Council or with partnership organisations. This can be an excellent way to 
build cohesion and co-operation across ‘silos’ and can help employees with career 
development. Therefore the Workforce Strategy will set up a ‘clearing house’ system 
run by HR to co-ordinate work experience for employees who would welcome such 
opportunities. Some services already encourage ‘learning days’ as part of the learning 
and development discussion at the annual appraisal. This practice will be rolled out 
across the Council and the number of work experience events will be increased year on 
year. The employees who volunteer for this type of career development experience will 
be matched by HR with a mentor – a manager from a different part of the Council who 
will provide expert advice and guidance on leadership to help the employee gain as 
much as possible from the experience of working in another part of the Council. The 
mentor listens to the challenges the employee is facing and offers advice and support 
based on their own career history and experience. 

4.2  Leadership

4.2.1 The Council has consulted on a new leadership structure consisting of a 
Chief Executive, three Executive Directors (People, Place and Resources) and seven 
Service Directors. This is an emergent structure which will be put in place by the end of 
2021 and is a response to the Council’s financial challenge and the succession planning 
challenges mentioned above. The elected members support a more strategic approach 
to the top tier of the Council to tackle the financial issues over the lifetime of the 
Workforce Strategy.  It represents a move away from service specific ‘Heads of Service’ 
to fewer, more generalist and strategic/corporate senior roles. The service knowledge 
will be placed at a lower ‘Tier 4’ level with the appointment of “Service Leads” where 
required.  There is a need for HR support to put in place arrangements to move towards 
the new structure, normally as natural turnover/retirement occurs. South East 
Employers (SEE) have advised on the remuneration levels of the top 11 posts in the 
structure. The successful implementation of the new ‘top tier’ structure is an important 
objective of the Workforce Strategy. 

Page 24



Page 7 of 16
Version *.* * Strategy Dated: *

4.2.2 In 2018, HR held a series of “Management Consistency” workshops for all 
managers with three or more direct reports. The aim was to ensure consistency of 
approach across a range of HR policies following feedback from employees regarding 
inconsistent approaches to ‘people management’ issues (i.e. managers being either too 
harsh or too lenient). The workshops showed that a number of managers find the 
‘people issues’ associated with management the most difficult part of their role. WBC 
has a set of competencies for all employees and extra ones for managers set out for 
discussion in the annual appraisal form. These are shown below. HR will run annual 
workshops from April 2020 for all new managers based on the management 
competency framework (which is set out in the appraisal form), together with discussion 
of the Council’s values of Customer Focus, Integrity and Fairness to improve 
management consistency. 

Leaders of people
When working with people Understand stakeholders’ motivation and 

objectives
Be a skilled influencer (communicate the vision 
and objectives, inspire and motivate, develop buy-
in and trust) 
Expect, encourage and support high standards of 
performance from team members
Use a range of leadership styles appropriate to 
individual team members and the situation
Develop team working and a sense of common 
purpose; manage conflict

In relation to learning and 
development

Actively develop the team to meet current and 
future challenges
Encourage team members to reflect on experience 
and learning; actively encourage transfer of 
learning 
Seek feedback on own performance to improve 
self-awareness and own development needs

In their approach to work Be a role model (demonstrating drive, purpose, 
integrity, fairness, enthusiasm, openness, 
resilience)
Adapt to change, taking prompt and appropriate 
remedial action where required 

When managing 
performance

Set/agree clear objectives, and quality and 
performance measures (for tasks and staff)
Monitor and evaluate budgets, staff performance, 
and objectives
Recognise good performance, and challenge 
underperformance and conduct
Develop and empower team members to make 
decisions (coaching)

Page 25



Page 8 of 16
Version *.* * Strategy Dated: *

More general leadership training is available through the ILM (Institute of Leadership & 
Management) apprenticeship route. This course is popular with ambitious managers and is 
available at level 3 and 5.

4.2.3 The competencies for ‘Leaders of People’ refers to coaching to develop and 
empower team members to make decisions. However, coaching successfully is a highly 
skilled process and many of our managers have not been trained to coach their 
employees. HR have therefore submited a pressure bid for resources to run coaching 
courses for managers from 2020 to 2023 with professional follow up support from a 
coaching expert. Coaching is a leadership skill that should be used by line managers in 
leading their team members. 

4.2.4 The Council will support a cohort of five to seven managers at Tier 4 to 
undertake the new Masters course in Strategic Public Management and Leadership 
which is funded by the apprenticeship levy. One delegate from HR is on the course in 
2019 to provide guidance and advice to potential delegates in 2020. The delegates 
must hold a first degree and be interested in promotion to Service Director level in the 
future. Corporate Board will provide mentoring for the delegates including arranging for 
shadowing and short secondments to match work experiences with the course. 

4.2.5 South East Employers run a full day management development ‘game’ called 
the Local Government Challenge each April. WBC has taken part in 2018 and 2019 and 
the feedback is that it is a good learning exercise for the senior managers who attend 
(as they meet teams from other local authorities and learn new skills). However, the 
feedback also shows that WBC does not invest time in supporting our team before they 
attend the Local Government challenge and there is limited organisational learning from 
their experience. To overcome these drawbacks senior managers will mentor the 
participants before and after the day to embed the learning at individual and 
organisational level. Mentoring will also be encouraged across the organisation to help 
with career development. 

4.3  Recruitment and Retention

4.3.1 Recruitment to the majority of posts across the Council is successful. The 
HR Service identifies areas of recruitment difficulty and reports these to Corporate 
Board (CB) twice a year. In recent years job roles which have proved difficult to recruit 
to include social workers (for both children and adult services); residential child care 
officers; occupational therapists; Civil Enforcement Officers; and registered general 
nurses (RGNs). 

4.3.2 HR currently work closely with managers recruiting to these roles to provide 
specific support and guidance to improve the success of recruitment, both in terms of 
numbers and quality of applicants. Recent approaches have included increased use of 
social media, dedicated webpages and amended recruitment processes. In addition, 
through the relevant workforce development groups, HR are creating a recruitment 
strategy for roles that are hard to recruit to, so there is a clear progression path and 
qualifications for the role can be funded via the Apprenticeship Levy. The approach to 
recruitment for hard to fill posts will often be to see whether the post could be converted 
into an apprenticeship leading to a career path for candidates without specific 
experience of the type of work. 

Page 26



Page 9 of 16
Version *.* * Strategy Dated: *

4.3.3 The Council will increase its investment in accepting candidates for work 
experience, especially from disadvantaged groups. This will act as a ‘stepping stone’ to 
allow the candidates to apply for apprenticeship posts with the Council. 

4.3.4 One of the interesting features of the Employment Attitude Survey which the 
Council undertakes every three years (next one will be in 2021) is that the majority of 
employees feel that their pay is too low but also say that they will still be working for 
WBC in 12 months’ time and would recommend the Council to their friend and family as 
a good employer. Classic HR theory would suggest that if an employer pays below the 
market rate the employees will leave and turnover will be much higher than average. 
However, for West Berkshire that is not the case – turnover is steady at 13%. How can 
this be explained? The answer partly lies in the Council’s approach to flexible and 
mobile working which suits the work/life balance of many of its employees. So one 
aspect of recruitment and retention which will be emphasised in recruitment advertising 
in future is the ‘non pay benefits’ of working for the Council: part time and job share 
work; flexible hours and up to 13 flexi-days; working from home some days (if a ‘Flexible 
Worker’); generous annual leave; excellent pension scheme; and employee discount 
scheme. The LGA recommends this approach in its ‘return to social work’ advice so this 
approach to recruitment and retention will be discussed with managers in ASC and 
C&FS to try to overcome possible managerial resistance to job shares for social worker 
posts. 

4.3.5 Despite the relative overall stability of recruitment and retention (R&R) there 
are some ‘hot spots’ where turnover is high and it is difficult to recruit which can lead to 
a high percentage of agency staff.  A request for funding for a bespoke recruitment and 
retention package can be put to the Executive by services which have acute recruitment 
problems.  Corporate Board (CB) is kept up to date on recruitment and retention 
challenges through a regular ‘Recruitment Hot Spots’ report.

4.3.6 Recruitment and retention of the 11 most senior managers in the new top tier 
structure has included a review of remuneration for market forces and the weight of the 
new roles. South East Employers (SEE) has undertaken detailed work and produced a 
report on salaries. A report on senior management remuneration will go to the Executive 
in January 2020.  The Executive has already approved the salary recommended by 
SEE for the newly created posts of Executive Director (People) and Executive Director 
(Resources). 

4.3.7 Market supplements were abolished some years ago because they could no 
longer be justified. Most of the recipients of market supplements are still working for the 
Council which demonstrates that the market supplements then in force were not 
needed. The maintenance of a fair market supplement scheme is difficult because 
market pressures change over time. However, a new market supplement scheme may 
need to be considered during the lifetime of the Workforce Strategy if recruitment and 
retention problems become more widespread. HR will continue to monitor the 
recruitment and retention situation through its regular ‘Recruitment Hotspots’ report to 
CB. 

4.3.8 Some managers and the recruitment team in HR are interested in exploiting 
the potential of social media to recruit into hard to fill posts. This can be combined with 
social media ratings sites such as ‘Glass Door’ to make the digital approach to 
recruitment feel easier and more modern for prospective employees. However, the 
traditional emphasis on equalities in recruitment in local government means that, for 
example, the Council maintains a ‘no CVs’ approach which mitigates against slick social 

Page 27



Page 10 of 16
Version *.* * Strategy Dated: *

media recruitment. Data protection regulations mean that prospective candidates are 
not contacted again regarding other vacant posts. HR will convene an “Improving 
Recruitment” day with recruiting managers; members of the recruitment team; and 
digital experts to explore how progress can be made in this area. 

4.4 Organisational Development

4.4.1 Organisational development (OD) is a planned change that affects the 
workforce, and which uses some OD activities to implement the change. The most 
common form of OD activity is to consult the affected staff before making a change 
which will affect their working lives. This is the normal OD practice at the Council, 
together with consulting the recognised trade unions.  

4.4.2 In addition to consultation there are a range of OD techniques which seek to 
change the culture of an organisation and build active support (rather than passive 
acceptance) of change initiatives. A current example of OD activity is the use of 
strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats (SWOT) workshops with teams in the 
New Ways of Working (NWOW) programme of service reviews. The HR resource 
available to support OD activities is limited at the moment and will need to be increased 
if major change initiatives are planned which affect the workforce in the lifetime of the 
Workforce Strategy. 

4.4.3 The culture at West Berkshire is summed up by its values: Customer Focus, 
Integrity and Fairness. The Council invests in listening to its employees by running an 
Employee Attitude Survey every three years and holding ‘Let’s Chat’ workshops with 
randomly selected employees every 18 months. The ‘Let’s Chat’ workshops allow 
employees to discuss concerns and ideas with the Chief Executive and the Leader (or 
Deputy Leader) of the Council. They have proved popular with employees. The future 
Let’s Chat staff workshops in autumn 2020 and the EAS in June 2021 are included in 
the action plan below. 

4.4.4 The culture of any organisation is resistant to change. However, because the 
current culture at WBC supports its objectives there is no pressing need to make a 
change to the culture. However, Executive Members identified ‘aspirational values’ 
which might underpin future changes. These are as follows: dynamic/innovative; 
empowering; learning; entrepreneurial; transformational; self-critical; and celebrates 
success. If the Council wanted to change the culture to reflect these ‘aspirational values’ 
it would need to invest in OD activities to make the change(s) succeed. The change that 
is most likely to require more OD resource is the move to a ‘three tier working’ where 
this is identified as improving effectiveness and efficiency through the New Ways of 
Working (NWOW) review of services. Three tier working means that activities are 
digitised and automated where possible; generalists deal with queries which are the 
same over time using ‘scripts’; and experts deal with unusual or complex issues. The 
number of expensive experts required reduces as the three tier working is introduced. 
This change meets the aspirational values of being transformational, 
dynamic/innovative and learning. OD techniques can help staff to embrace rather than 
resist the introduction of digitisation and three tier working where this is deemed 
appropriate after a NWOW review. This would be progressed in conjunction with 
colleagues in the Digital Services and ICT.  

4.4.5 OD techniques are often used to change an ‘unhealthy’ organisation. 
Unhealthy in this context can mean higher than average sickness absence; higher than 

Page 28



Page 11 of 16
Version *.* * Strategy Dated: *

average grievances; too much conflict; etc. In WBC, the indicators of a healthy 
organisation are constantly monitored by HR and the organisation is in a healthy state; 
sickness is normally at the public sector average; grievances are few; and employee 
engagement is above the benchmarked average for local government.  It is important 
that HR continues to have the capacity to monitor the indicators of organisational health 
during the Workforce Strategy. However, sickness absence has drifted upwards in 
2018/19 so HR will hold workshops for managers on using the Sickness Absence 
Procedure (an example of an OD intervention). 

4.5 Employee Wellbeing

4.5.1 The average number of days lost due to sickness in 2018/19 was 9.84 (it 
was 8.59 in 2017/18). The most common reason for absence was ‘stress/ depression/ 
anxiety’ which accounted for 25.3% of all absence (up from 21.3%).  The Council, 
particularly through its Public Health and Wellbeing Service (PH&W), has already made 
progress in the area of stress with Dementia Friends; Suicide Prevention Training; and 
Mental Health Champions.  PH&W promote employee health and wellbeing campaigns 
through its webpages and social media presence (which are accessible to staff and the 
public). West Berkshire Council will take a more preventative approach to developing a 
mentally healthy workplace and building emotional resilience.  There is evidence to 
suggest that focusing on a single risk factor in isolation is unlikely to develop a mentally 
healthy workplace so WBC will take a broader approach. The Organisational Stress 
Management Policy has been reviewed and is currently out to consultation. WBC does 
not have a free, confidential Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) - access to 
counselling is via HR. This is more restrictive than many other councils and HR will 
prepare a report for Corporate Board looking at the costs and benefits of introducing an 
EAP.  

4.5.2 The Council operates an Occupational Health service through a contractor, 
(Heales).  The Council also provide access to confidential counselling through a list of 
approved counsellors, funded by services. The Council has a robust sickness 
management policy. In light of the increase in the absence rate from 2017/18 to 2018/19 
HR has introduced training workshops for managers to ensure that the policy is being 
applied consistently and in a timely fashion.  

5. Conclusion

There is a need for a Workforce Strategy which makes the link between the challenges 
facing the Council as set out in the Council Strategy and the focus of ‘people management’ 
activities undertaken over the four year period July 2019 to July 2023. Some of this activity 
will be undertaken by the HR service and some by managers. 
The activities have been divided into five areas: Apprenticeships and Skills 
Development; Leadership; Recruitment & Retention; Organisational Development 
and Employee Wellbeing. Some of the activities will be supported by budget pressure 
bids for increased funding.  

6. Action Plan

Action Timescale Comment
HR to support Support to begin in summer Progress will be reviewed 

Page 29



Page 12 of 16
Version *.* * Strategy Dated: *

implementation of new top 
tier management structure 
including at Tier 4.

2019 and end in summer 
2021.

annually.

Introduce HR workshops for 
new managers on the 
leadership competency 
framework in the corporate 
appraisal form; and to 
discuss how to use the 
Council’s values of 
Customer Focus, Integrity 
and Fairness in their 
decision making.

To start in spring 2020. Subject to additional 
resources for HR.

The Council has published 
its competency framework 
for managers on the 
appraisal form. However, 
the challenge of ensuring 
that managers act 
consistently in how they 
manage their employees is 
on-going as new managers 
are appointed.   

Commercialisation skills 
training funded from the 
Corporate Programme for 
managers with an interest 
in generating more income 
for the Council.

To start in summer 2019.  Training provider identified. 

ASC and C&FS to continue 
to build the ‘non-pay 
benefits’ message, with HR 
support, of working for the 
Council as part of their 
recruitment campaigns.

To start in summer 2019. Working with HR 
recruitment team. 

HR to hold an “Improving 
Recruitment through social 
media” day for recruiting 
managers, HR staff and 
digital experts.

Autumn 2019. May lead to proposed 
changes to some HR 
policies (e.g. ‘no CVs’).

All vacancies up to Grade F 
to be considered for 
apprenticeships.

September 2019. ‘Default’ will be to assume 
vacancy can be linked to an 
apprenticeship in 
discussion with the 
recruiting manager. 

HR to introduce a new 
volunteer/ work experience 
policy. 

July 2019 Will act as a ‘stepping 
stone’ to help 
disadvantaged applicants to 
access apprenticeship 
vacancies. 

HR to organise a cohort of 
five to seven ‘Tier 4’ 
managers to undertake the 
Masters course in Strategic 
Leadership and 
Management funded by the 
apprenticeship levy.

Cohort to be identified by 
March 2020 and course to 
start in September 2020.

The cohort will be mentored 
and coached by Corporate 
Board.
HR Manager will attend the 
course from September 
2019 to help with launch in 
2020. 

Page 30



Page 13 of 16
Version *.* * Strategy Dated: *

                                                         

HR to present a report to 
CB considering the pros 
and cons of introducing an 
Employee Assistance 
Programme (EAP) to assist 
in the area of Employee 
Wellbeing. 

This report will be 
presented to CB in autumn 
2019 to potentially start in 
April 2020

An EAP would require a 
successful budget bid.

Hold ‘Let’s Chat’ workshops 
for staff employees

Arranged by HR in autumn 
2020 and spring 2022. 

Subject to be determined by 
Strategy Board – initial 
proposal from IEG is to 
focus on Equalities in 2020. 

Hold an Employee Attitude 
Survey and analyse and act 
on the results. 

June 2021. Will need to source a new 
provider or do the EAS in 
house (as current provider 
has ceased to do this work).

Finance and HR to produce 
a report on each service’s 
training budget and the 
amount of training 
expenditure per employee 
and report to CB. 

 Autumn 2019 as budget is 
being built for 2020/21. 

This analysis will allow CB 
to determine whether 
access to training and 
development is fair across 
the Council (an issue raised 
by staff at the Let’s Chat 
workshops in spring 2019) 

HR to run an internal 
‘brokerage’ service to 
match employees seeking 
career development with 
services offering shadowing 
and secondments. 
HR to find mentors for 
employees who are 
seconded. 

Ongoing from April 2020 Subject to additional 
resources for HR.
Issue raised by staff at the 
Let’s Chat workshops in 
spring 2019.
Mentors will be managers 
from a different part of the 
Council. 

HR will continue to ensure 
that all employees have 
access to the on-line 
learning, by providing 
bespoke face to face 
training where required to 
meet the needs of 
employees with disabilities. 

July 2019 The e-learning will not be 
changed (because that is a 
disproportionate response). 
The important thing is that 
access to the learning is 
available to all employees. 

HR to procure a training 
provider to provide high 
quality training on Coaching 
Skills including follow up 
support.

Spring 2020 Subject to pressure bid. 

HR to work with digital 
service colleagues to 
provide OD activities to 
support the successful 
introduction of ‘Three Tier 

2020/21 Subject to pressure bid

Page 31



Page 14 of 16
Version *.* * Strategy Dated: *

Working’ where that is an 
outcome of a NWOW 
review of a service.  
HR to run workshops for 
managers on using the 
Sickness Absence Policy

To start autumn 2019 On-going for until summer 
2020 when sickness figure 
for 19/20 is known.  

Corporate Board to support 
and mentor the team 
entered for the next LGA 
Challenge

Spring 2020 HR to arrange for formation 
of the team. 

6.1 Further actions may be added during the lifetime of the Workforce Strategy.  

 Background information to Workforce Strategy. 

Workforce statistics are published on the Council’s website in the Annual Employment 
Report. 

One area that is not addressed in the Workforce Strategy is Pay & Reward. This is 
because the Council piloted a performance related pay scheme in 2016/17 linked to 
appraisals and feedback led to the roll-out being halted. The Workforce Strategy may be 
changed before March 2020 to include a section on reintroducing scoring for performance 
at appraisals. Operation Board will consider a report from the Head of HR on 5th December 
on the pros and cons of reintroducing scoring for appraisals which will include views from 
managers, staff and unions as well as a review of what other local authorities do. This 
report will also consider the option of training approved at appraisal to be contingent on the 
employee having an up to date record on all mandatory training. If OB decide to 
recommend the reintroduction of scoring in appraisals this will go to Personnel Committee 
for final approval. 

Currently the Council retains a traditional local authority approach to pay with grades made 
up of a number of ‘spinal column points’ which are incremented after each year’s service 
until they reach the top of the grade. The Council is currently part of South East Employers 
(SEE) and uses its “E-Pay Check” system to benchmark salaries with other local 
authorities. The Hay Job Evaluation scheme is used for most jobs (not the top tier which 
uses SEE) and WBC ‘shadows’ the NJC national pay award (although WBC is not part of 
the national pay and conditions framework known as ‘the Green Book’). 

Learning opportunities for employees which are set out in the HR pages on the intranet. 
These are a mixture of learning which is applicable to all employees and learning which is 
service or team specific. Much of the learning applicable to all employees is mandatory 
and is monitored through the corporate performance reports to Corporate Board. Since 
2010 the strategic direction of learning and development has been to move away from 
classroom courses if possible and to increase the quantity and quality of e-learning 
resources. This is to reduce costs and to make the training more accessible to part time 
and remote staff. However, this has led to concerns about the accessibility of e-learning 
courses for some employees with disabilities. HR will ensure that all employees have 
access to the learning, by providing bespoke face to face training where required to meet 
the needs of employees with disabilities (rather than modifying the e-learning). The 
majority of learning and development across the Council’s workforce is funded from 

Page 32



Page 15 of 16
Version *.* * Strategy Dated: *

devolved training budgets. The Council’s training team offers face-to-face and e-learning 
courses specific to certain areas of the workforce e.g. adult social care, children and young 
people, and which covers corporate staff as well as other workers e.g. foster carers and 
support workers. 

108 people were enrolled onto an apprenticeship programme in 2018. 

There have been several focussed areas of development for specific groups of staff. 
Examples of these include: 

 Institute of Leadership & Management (ILM) qualifications. 150 staff have qualified 
at different levels. These courses included:

o Certificate in Leadership and Management levels 2 and 5, 
o Introductory Certificate in Management Level 3, 
o First Line Managers Award in Leadership Level 3. 

 Collaborative Architects – the Council engaged consultant Manny Gatt to deliver 
development to senior leaders to foster a culture of collaboration. 

 Negotiation Skills – senior managers were offered training in negotiation skills, 
delivered by Scotworks. 

 Restorative Practice – a large number of staff in the Communities directorate have 
undertaken training in restorative practice (a particular method of working with 
people in the community and elsewhere).  

 Management Consistency - over 200 Council managers attended these workshops. 
The idea of these workshops came from staff feedback at Let’s Chat workshops 
that there was inconsistency in management decisions on ‘people issues’ across 
the Council. 

Page 33



Page 16 of 16
Version *.* * Strategy Dated: *

Page 34


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	4. Council Workforce Strategy 2019-2023 (PC3755)
	2. Workforce Strategy  Appendix C Supporting_Information for Personnel Committee 120919
	3. West Berkshire Council's Workforce Strategy 2019 to 2023 for Personnel Committee 120919


